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Abe Kanter and Brother – Merchants of Clanton 
By Derric Scott 

 
Abraham Kanter was born October 1877 in Lithuania.  On the 1910 US Census he says he was 
naturalized in 1895 and it notes he is Hebrew (Jewish).  He was part of a family of several brothers and 
at least one sister that moved from Lithuania to the United States in the 1890s or early 1900s.  They 
listed “Russia” as their birthplace on some papers and Lithuania on others.  It is very likely that they 
emigrated from Lithuania to escape from Russian anti-Jewish pogroms, persecution, and harsh 
restrictions levied on Jews by the anti-Semitic Imperial Russian Government, which controlled Lithuania 
during the 19th Century.  Particularly harsh laws were passed in May of 1882 called the “May Laws” a 
few years before the Kanters arrived in the U. S.  
 
The first notice of Abe Kanter in Chilton County was when he rented the old courthouse building to 
renovate and use as a store in the summer of 1897.  It is mentioned that he is from Troy (Alabama) but 
no records from there have been found.  By August it is “completely transformed” and Abe has $20,000 
worth of “well selected stock of general merchandise” from New York for sale.  These early 
advertisements simply called the store “Abe’s” and later just listed “Abe Kanter, proprietor.” 

 
Union Banner July 8, 1897 

 
A bit on the “old courthouse:” In 1871 the first Chilton County Courthouse, located at Grantville, burned.  
Clanton was then selected as the county seat and a new one was built.  It was two story, wood framed, 
and was located directly in the middle of the intersection of 2nd Avenue North and 6th Street in 
“Courthouse Square.” 

           
The 1872 Chilton County Courthouse and a map of “Courthouse Square,” replaced in 1896. 

 
When the 1872 Courthouse was replaced in 1896 with the new brick structure the old building was 
bought by Dr. J. S. Johnson, Sr. and moved into place in a city block and used as a store.  Abe Kanter was 
likely the first to use it in 1897.  One of his advertisements says “the cheapest store in Clanton is The Fair 
Store on the corner opposite the Court House,” meaning the southwest corner of the intersection. 
 
Since it was two stories, some of the upstairs was rented out to other businesses.  One example is when 
Col. R. H. Knox was burned out, he then opened an office upstairs in the Kanter Building. 
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Two early postcards of Clanton.  The old 1872 Courthouse is the white two story building on the left – Abe Kantor’s 1

st
 store. 

On the right the two story brick building is P. D. Wilson’s. 

 
Business was good and in August of 1899 Mr. Durwood Foshee went to Catherine, Wilcox County, to 
manage a new branch store opened by Mr. Abe Kanter.  Sam Jaffee also went to work in the store as an 
assistant. 
 
Soon, unfortunately, things took a turn for the worse and Abe was forced to have a bankruptcy sale in 
February of 1900.  In October of that year he was noted to be very sick and the newspaper editor wished 
him well and hoped he would get the store opened up again soon. 
 
Apparently business turned around and about a year later, April 1901, Abe was back advertising again!  
It seems he was also in a new building, but the exact spot was unclear and his old building (the old 
courthouse) was going to be used by Judson Strock for books and stationary and by J. E. Evans for 
general merchandise.  The first advertisement simply listed “W. Kanter, Clanton” as the business.  
Apparently within a year it was named “W. Kanter & Bro.”  Note that the “W. Kanter” was apparently 
his brother William (born Oct 1867, immigrated 1891) who was in Shelby County and Abe was the 
“brother” indicated in the name.  Perhaps William helped restart Abe’s business after the bankruptcy? 
 
Another brother, Elbert, was in Clanton a bit later, around 1905-1906.  He had run a store in Prattville 
for a year or two, but then moved to Clanton and started his own business, so he was clearly not the 
brother indicated in the “W. Kanter & Bro.” name.  In March of 1908 Elbert sold his business to Abe and 
moved to Duluth, Minnesota.  They also had a sister, Sarah, who came to Clanton from Canada and 
rented the Carroll house with Abe in 1904.  She also later lived Minnesota. 
 
At the end of 1904 when fellow merchant P. D. Wilson decided to retire, the W. Kanter and Bro. bought 
his business and moved into his two story brick building, called the Wilson Building.  It was located 
about mid-way down the block on the north side of 2nd Avenue North between 6th and 7th Streets. 
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1928, L-R, Mullins wooden building, Peoples Savings Bank, Clanton Bank building (likely the First National Bank and the first 

Chicago Sales building), two story P. D. Wilson building.  4
th

 Courthouse is in far distance. 

 
In the 1908-1909 timeframe there were humorous skits and hijinks done in town.  Abe Kanter 
participated in several; including one fake trial and one debate on bachelorhood vs. marriage (Abe was 
unmarried).  In 1910 Abe is living in the Palmer Boarding House. 
 

 
1910 US Census showing Abe Kanter, boarding at the Palmer Boarding House, Hebrew, from Russia 

 
 
Sadly, on Saturday, July 15, 1911, Abe’s body was found in a well near the Wilson house (Palmer 
Boarding House) where he lived.  The newspaper reported he had been despondent lately and suicide 
was suspected.  His brother Elbert, now living in Blocton, was called and Abe’s body was taken to 
Birmingham and buried in the Knesseth Israel Jewish Cemetery.  
 
The era of the Kanter merchants in Clanton comes to an end the next month, August, when the 
business’ goods were sold at auction to Bernard Frank & Co. of Montgomery.  In September Mr. T. G. 
Taylor moved his business into the W. Kanter & Bro. location in the Wilson Building.  Mr. T. G. Taylor 
was previously in business in “Littlejohn’s Old Stand, west of the L. & N. Railroad.” 
 
Elbert Kanter continued to live and work as a merchant in the Shelby County and Birmingham area, 
sometimes with his brother William.  He was born on August 15, 1882 in Lithuania and died May 18, 
1959.  All the Kanter brothers were buried in the Knesseth Israel Cemetery in Birmingham. 
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